
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




  


1. Call to order 
2. Roll call and verification of quorum 
3. Certification and compliance with open meetings law 
4. Approval of minutes from August 10, 2023  
5. CIP Budget overview 08-16-2023 
6. Reports – Impact fees 
7. R-40-2023 Request for clarification regarding ARPA funds for digital welcome signs 
8. Departmental presentations of Capital Improvement Plan 


a. City Clerk 
b. Finance Department 
c. Police Department 
d. Public Works 
e. Recreation Programs 
f. Senior Center 


9. Discussion and possible action regarding Capital Improvement Plans 
a. City of Stoughton – Capital Improvement Plan v5 
b. City of Stoughton – Construction Capital Improvement Plan v2 


10. Future agenda items 
a. Wednesday, August 23, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 


i. Presentation – City Clerk (if needed) 
ii. Presentation - Planning and Development 


iii. Finalize and approve Capital Improvement Plan 2024-2028 
iv. Finalize and approve Construction Capital Improvement Plan 2024-2028 


11. Adjourn 
 


 


 
OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA - Amended 


Notice is hereby given that the Finance Committee of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin will hold a 
regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given below. 


 


 


Meeting of the: 


Date & time: 


 
Capital Improvement Plan Committee of City of Stoughton 
Thursday, August 17, 2023 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
The meeting of the Capital Improvement Plan Committee will be conducted as a hybrid meeting 
In person:  Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building, 321 S. Fourth St.) 
Virtual:  You can attend the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89538520550?pwd=ZCtUSkhWVXJXSjdFWWlvMnVlWVBGZz09 
Meeting ID: 895 3852 0550 Passcode: 391328 
One tap mobile +16469313860,,89538520550#,,,,*391328# US  
Live-streamed:  https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum Channel 981 or on TDS Channel 12.   
The WSTO-TV app is also available on Roku, Apple TV, Fire TV, Android and iOS. 
Note:  Effective September 1, 2023, the TDS channel number for WSTO-TV will be 981. 
 
 Members:  Phil Caravello, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Thomas Majewski, Lisa Reeves, Jonathan 
Schroerlucke, Brett Schumacher, Tim Swadley (ex-officio) 







     Any person wishing to attend the meeting, whom because of a disability, requires special 
accommodation, should contact the Director of Finance’s office at (608) 873-6691 at least 24 hours before 
the scheduled meeting time so appropriate arrangements can be made.  
     In addition, any person wishing to speak or have their comments heard but does not have access to the 
internet should also contact the Director of Finance’s office at the number above at least 24 hours before 
the scheduled meeting so appropriate arrangements can be made.  
 
NOTE:  AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL 
 
 
 

















Row Labels Sum of 2024 Sum of 2025 Sum of 2026 Sum of 2027 Sum of 2028 Row Labels Sum of 2024 Sum of 2025 Sum of 2026 Sum of 2027 Sum of 2028
City Clerk 8,224$             ARPA funds (184,730)$        


Expenditure 8,224$              Capital Grant (115,270)$        
EMS -$                      Debt issue 11,130,658$   8,276,000$      4,619,000$      3,238,000$      1,598,000$      


Expenditure 300,000$         Impact fees -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
Revenue (300,000)$        User fees 300,000$         


Finance 130,000$         Grand Total 11,130,658$   8,276,000$      4,619,000$      3,238,000$      1,598,000$      
Expenditure 130,000$         


Fire 253,910$         1,201,500$      211,500$         1,978,000$      78,000$           
Expenditure 253,910$         1,201,500$      211,500$         1,978,000$      78,000$           5,876,829$      4,743,921$      4,308,494$      3,461,095$      2,893,872$      


IT/Media 111,000$         155,000$         55,000$           121,500$         100,000$         Total proposed debt 17,007,487$   15,874,579$   15,439,152$   14,591,753$   14,024,530$   
Expenditure 111,000$         155,000$         55,000$           121,500$         100,000$         


Library 27,500$           10,000$           10,000$           10,000$           10,000$           
Expenditure 27,500$           10,000$           10,000$           10,000$           10,000$           Assumptions


Planning  578,000$         891,000$         248,000$         119,000$         161,000$         --15 year amortization (average of 10 year and 20 amortizations)
Expenditure 620,000$         960,000$         290,000$         170,000$         230,000$         --7.00% APR
Revenue (42,000)$          (69,000)$          (42,000)$          (51,000)$          (69,000)$          --Monthly payments (as opposed to our typical six month payment cycle)


Police  254,000$         118,000$         104,000$         124,500$         114,000$         
Expenditure 254,000$         118,000$         104,000$         124,500$         114,000$         Debt Issue 2023A $737,676 $737,676 $737,676 $737,676 $737,676


Public Safety 140,000$         Debt Issue 2024A $1,834,416 $1,834,416 $1,834,416 $1,834,416
Expenditure 140,000$         Debt Issue 2025A $1,712,220 $1,712,220 $1,712,220


Public Works 928,693$         790,500$         1,086,500$      535,000$         485,000$         Debt Issue 2026A $1,665,252 $1,665,252
Expenditure 1,038,693$      790,500$         1,086,500$      535,000$         485,000$         Debt Issue 2027A $1,573,860
Revenue (110,000)$        Total $737,676 $2,572,092 $4,284,312 $5,949,564 $7,523,424


Rec Programs 8,429,331$      4,980,000$      2,904,000$      350,000$         650,000$         
Expenditure 10,823,388$   6,603,116$      3,047,000$      376,250$         680,750$         
Revenue (2,394,057)$    (1,623,116)$    (143,000)$        (26,250)$          (30,750)$          


Senior Center 400,000$         
Expenditure 500,000$         
Revenue (100,000)$        


Grand Total 11,130,658$   8,276,000$      4,619,000$      3,238,000$      1,598,000$      


Down and dirty debt principal and interest payments estimates


City of Stoughton 
Capital Improvement Plan 2024-2028 v4


Summary Pivot Tables


 Streets and Storm 
Water Construction 







Description 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


Outstanding Debt
Beginning general obligation debt 36,666,910$         39,237,570$         51,980,181$         63,588,427$         74,849,799$         85,617,275$         
Scheduled debt service payments (4,268,587)            (4,164,876)            (4,266,333)            (4,177,780)            (3,824,277)            (2,820,781)            
Debt Issue 2023A - adopted budget 9,321,043             
Less River Development delayed bonding until 2024 (2,481,796)            (100,000)               
Requested Capital Improvement Plan 2024-2028 17,007,487           15,874,579           15,439,152           14,591,753           14,024,530           
Projected ending general obligation debt 39,237,570$         51,980,181$         63,588,427$         74,849,799$         85,617,275$         96,821,024$         


Equalized Value (including TIDs)
Beginning equalized value 1,567,793,700$   1,816,333,500$   2,044,464,988$   2,301,249,790$   2,590,286,764$   2,915,626,782$   
Projected increase (three year average) at 12.56% 228,131,488         256,784,802         289,036,974         325,340,018         366,202,724         
Known increase 248,539,800         
Ending equalized value 1,816,333,500$   2,044,464,988$   2,301,249,790$   2,590,286,764$   2,915,626,782$   3,281,829,506$   


General obligation debt as a percent of equalized value 2.16% 2.54% 2.76% 2.89% 2.94% 2.95%


Operational tax levy - projected
Beginning operational tax levy 6,346,031$           6,532,620$           6,689,144$           6,816,907$           6,947,110$           7,079,800$           
Projected increase (three year average) at 1.91% 127,763$              130,203$              132,690$              135,224$              
Known increase 186,589$              156,524$              
Ending operational tax levy 6,532,620$           6,689,144$           6,816,907$           6,947,110$           7,079,800$           7,215,024$           


Debt service tax levy - projected
Scheduled principal and interest 5,313,136$           5,040,202$           5,026,239$           4,825,255$           4,365,901$           3,273,328$           
Less Tax Increment Districts & Storm Sewer - known (1,334,462)$         
Less Tax Increment Districts & Storm Sewer - projected (1,400,000)$         (1,400,000)$         (1,400,000)$         (1,400,000)$         (1,400,000)$         
Estimated principal and interest payments 737,676$              2,572,092$           4,284,312$           5,949,564$           7,523,424$           
Ending debt service tax levy 3,978,674$           4,377,878$           6,198,331$           7,709,567$           8,915,465$           9,396,752$           


Equalized Value (excluding TIDs)
Beginning equalized value 1,286,313,900$   1,499,453,200$   1,706,623,300$   1,920,975,186$   2,162,249,669$   2,433,828,227$   
Projected increase (three year average) at 12.56% 214,351,886$      241,274,483$      271,578,558$      305,688,825$      
Known increase 213,139,300$      207,170,100$      
Ending equalized value 1,499,453,200$   1,706,623,300$   1,920,975,186$   2,162,249,669$   2,433,828,227$   2,739,517,052$   


Projected Mill Rate 7.0101$                 6.4847$                 6.7753$                 6.7784$                 6.5721$                 6.0638$                 


City of Stoughton 
Capital Improvement Plan 2024-2028 v5


Fiscal Projections


Budget Year





		Pivots v5.pdf

		Projection v5.pdf






Park Last Housing Type Units Projected
Updated Parks Trails Fees


Magnolia Springs 5/4/2023 Single family 62 3,950$            94$          250,728$      
Magnolia Springs Multiple family 56 2,742$            65$          157,192$      
Magnolia Springs Subtotal 407,920$      


51 West - east side 2023 9/26/2022 Single family 0 3,741$            -$             -$                   
51 West - east side 2023 Multiple family 170 2,597$            -$             441,490$      
51 West - west side 2024 Single family 9 3,741$            -$             33,669$        
51 West - west side 2024 Multiple family 185 2,597$            -$             480,445$      
51 West subtotal Subtotal 955,604$      


STI Holdings 6/5/2023 Single family 56 3,950$            94$          226,464$      
STI Holdings Multiple family 521 2,742$            65$          1,462,447$  
STI Holdings Subtotal 1,688,911$  


Kettle Park West 5/5/2023 Single Family 194 3,950$            94$          784,536$      
Kettle Park West Kettle Park Senior Living 62,758$        
Kettle Park West Multi Family (25 approved, 117 proposed) 117 2,742$            65$          328,419$      
Kettle Park West Subtotal 1,175,713$  


Totals 4,228,148$  


Impact fees also increase each year based on the Construction Cost Index so the above values are conservative.


Impact Fee


City of Stoughton
Projected Impact Fees Recap


August 16, 2023


Impact fees for the recently proposed Forward Development Group for a new apartment building in Kettle Park West are not included.







08/16/2023                               REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY                                         
                                                       Month Ended: December                                                       


BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE
AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF


GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION 12/31/2018 12/31/2019 12/31/2020 12/31/2021 12/31/2022 12/31/2023


Fund 223 - PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND
223-00000-42180 IMPACT FEE - LAND 3,574.61 0.00 25,278.12 0.00 0.00 0.00
223-00000-42190 IMPACT FEE - IMPROVEMENTS 8,201.17 95,945.00 11,869.89 27,717.86 0.00 0.00
223-55300-42180 IMPACT FEE - LAND 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 Fund balances as of 12/31/2022
223-55300-42190 IMPACT FEE - IMPROVEMENTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 307,703.00 0.00 Donations 11,865     
223-55300-44950 IMPACT FEES - IMPROVEMENTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 132,166.00 Land purchases 256,441  
TOTAL REVENUES 11,775.78 95,945.00 37,148.01 27,717.86 310,703.00 132,166.00 Park improvements 503,995  


Total 772,301  
Cumulative totals 11,775.78 107,720.78 144,868.79 172,586.65 483,289.65 615,455.65


In addition, the Parks and Recreation Committee met in closed session on 
05/16/2023 regarding potential purchase of a property.  My understanding 
is that the proposed funding is to come from impact fees also.





		Impact Fees recap 08-16-2023 recap.pdf

		06 Impact fees 08-16-2023.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 


207 S. Forrest St, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


(608) 873-6677     www.cityofstoughton.com 
 
 
 
 
August 10, 2023 
 
City of Stoughton 
Ad hoc Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Committee members 
 
I am requesting that clarification be provided as to whether the 2022 adopted budget including 
using American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) for the Public Works Department to purchase digital 
welcome signs or not.   
 
A very high-level recap is provided below: 
 


A.  August/September 2021 – Ad Hoc CIP Committee – Documentation provided as part 
of the 2022 budget hearings indicate $65,000 for city digital welcome signs was to be 
paid for using grant proceeds. 


B. I have confirmed with Public Works that there was no other grant other than ARPA 
involved for that capital outlay. 


C. November 2021 – Common Council - The 2022 budget was adopted which incorporated 
the 2022-2026 CIP Plan. 


D. August 2022 - Common Council – I started asking for clarification at the ARPA 
presentations whether the Common Council intended to use ARPA funds for the digital 
welcome signs or not. 


E. March 2023 – Finance Committee – My request for clarification with R-40-2023 was 
referred to the Committee of the Whole. 


F. March 2023 – Common Council – No action was taken on R-40-2023 due to the referral 
to the Committee of the Whole. 


G. April 2023 - Committee of the Whole – No discussion and no action taken on R-40-
2023. 


H. April 2023 – Committee of the Whole – The committee requested information from 
Public Works about the digital welcome signs.  Public Works provided the information 
via email the next day. 


 
Given the following:   


I. It has been announced that the Committee of the Whole will not meet again until April 
2024 regarding ARPA funds; 


II. Public Works has not purchased the digital welcome signs included in the 2022-2026 CIP 
due to the uncertainty of where the funding comes from; 


III. Public Works has once again included the digital welcome signs in their 2024-2028 CIP; 
IV. I truly need clarification for the annual ARPA reporting to the federal government in 


April 2024; 
 











Category Dept Head Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


Street Projects Brett/Rodney 400-Capital Projects Other-Grants RUTLAND DUNN TOWN LINE RD 41,580$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


Street Projects Brett/Rodney 400-Capital Projects Other-Grants DIGITAL WELCOME SIGNS 65,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL  $       106,580  $                 -    $                -    $                   -    $                   -   


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 - 2026 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


Page 1







Fund Dept Acct Project FULL ACCOUNT DEPT DESCRIPTION Description #2 2022 budget


400 57330 50820 22004000 400-57330-50820-22004000 STREETS JEFFERSON STREET BRIDGE REPLACEMENT JEFFERSON ST. BRIDGE REPLACEMENT 498,420


400 57330 50820 22016000 400-57330-50820-22016000 STREETS DIGITAL WELCOME SIGNS DIGITAL WELCOME SIGNS 65,000


410 57330 50820 22018000 410-57330-50820-22018000 STREETS PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE 180,000


410 57331 50820 22001000 410-57331-50820-22001000 STREETS #38 MORBARK WOOD CHIPPER #38 Morbark Wood Chipper 50,000


410 57331 50820 22036000 410-57331-50820-22036000 STREETS #40 SKID STEER S630 (BOBCAT) #40 Skid Steer S630 (Bobcat) 54,000


410 57331 50820 22037000 410-57331-50820-22037000 STREETS #7 PATROL TRUCK (CHEVY) #7 Patrol Truck (Chevy) 197,000


412 57190 50820 22042000 412-57190-50820-22042000 STREETS Toro GM7200 w/ polar track Toro GM7200 w/ polar track 30,000


412 57190 50820 22043000 412-57190-50820-22043000 STREETS Trailer Mounted Air Compressor Trailer Mounted Air Compressor 6,800


412 57190 50820 22044000 412-57190-50820-22044000 STREETS Trailer #46 Trailer #46 10,500


412 57190 50820 22045000 412-57190-50820-22045000 STREETS #13 Chevy K3500 #13 Chevy K3500 36,000







REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/1Page:08/10/2023 02:31 PM
User: DAVE
DB: Stoughton


PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 100.00


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORM (ABNORM)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/22


INCR (DECR)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022


NORM (ABNORM)
2022


AMENDED BUDGET


2022
ORIGINAL


BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 400 - CONSTRUCTION FUND
Dept 57330 - CAP OUTLAY STREETS
Account Type: Expenditure


0.00 65,000.00 0.00 0.00 65,000.00 0.00 DIGITAL WELCOME SIGNS400-57330-50810-22016000


0.00 65,000.00 0.00 0.00 65,000.00 0.00 Total Expenditure:


(65,000.00)0.00 0.00 (65,000.00)0.00 Net - Dept 57330 - CAP OUTLAY STREETS


0.00 (65,000.00)0.00 0.00 (65,000.00)0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES


0.00 65,000.00 0.00 0.00 65,000.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES


Fund 400 - CONSTRUCTION FUND:


0.00 (65,000.00)0.00 0.00 (65,000.00)0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES


0.00 65,000.00 0.00 0.00 65,000.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS



dehlinger

Highlight







Page 1 of 3


Funding approved Funding
Approved


254-54100-43310
Category Requested by: Purpose Approved April 2023 Requested 2022 Requested 2021


Business entity Alderperson Jenson Refunding certain licenses and fees Zero to $100,000
Business entity Alderperson Ligocki Small business assistance $100,001 to $200,000
Business entity Alderperson Tikalsky Offer aid to retail businesses to recover revenue lost during pandemic To be determined
Business entity Argo Craft Tavern To be determined Pending
Business entity Bryan Richgels 421 E Main St - 25% of project costs ($442,700), rounded down 110,500$                       
Business entity Yahara Chocolate & Tea / Green Road Pottery 261 W Main St - 25% of project costs ($358,000) 89,500$                         
Chamber / Visitor Services Mayor Swadley Provide direct funding to Stoughton Visitor Services To be determined
Chamber / Visitor Services Stoughton Chamber of Commerce Digital signage display downtown - equipment 24,967$                         
Chamber / Visitor Services Stoughton Chamber of Commerce Digital signage display downtown -shipping (estimate) 2,000$                           
Chamber / Visitor Services Stoughton Chamber of Commerce Digital signage display downtown - add on costs 1,775$                           
Chamber / Visitor Services Stoughton Chamber of Commerce Digital signage display downtown -annual cellular charges 500$                               
Committee Alderperson Reeves Green initiatives funding (Sustainability Committee) To be determined
Committee Stoughton DEI Task Force Pathway For All endowment fund 200,000$                       
Committee Stoughton DEI Task Force Education / event support 2023 12,000$                         
Committee Stoughton DEI Task Force Education / event support 2024 12,000$                         
Committee Stoughton DEI Task Force Education / event support 2022 6,000$                           
Committee Stoughton DEI Task Force Survey Monkey annual license 500$                               
Committee Stoughton DEI Task Force AcrGIS creator 500$                               
Dept - CIP Alderperson Hirsch Yahara River Park $200,001 to $300,000
Dept - CIP Emergency Medical Services Funds to purchase a new ambulance for EMS - currently operating short one ambulance (AMENDED) 300,000$                       To be determined
Dept - CIP Parks & Recreation Racetrack Park ball diamond upgrades (Phase 1) 350,000$                       
Dept - CIP Parks & Recreation River park 300,000$                       
Dept - CIP Parks & Recreation Virgin Lake Trail extension - Roby Rd to 51 West 175,000$                       
Dept - CIP Planning & Development City buildings air handling systems 52,800$                         65,000$                            
Dept - CIP Public Works 2022 CIP - City digital welcome signs (2022 adopted budget project #22016000, Fund 400 Construction) 65,000$                 65,000$                         
Dept - CIP Public Works 2022 CIP - Compost material enclosure 45,000$                         
Dept - CIP Public Works City digital welcome signs - additional 25,000$                         
Dept - CIP Stoughton Library Outdoor programming space (216 E Jefferson St) 30,000$                         Zero to $100,000
Dept - CIP Stoughton Library Replacement air handling system for Public Library building Zero to $100,000
Dept - CIP Stoughton Senior Center Funds to assist with the reconstruction of the Senior Center Annex space for programming 75,000$                            
Dept - operating City staff Construction of new welcome signs that have a digital component to them To be determined
Dept - operating Emergency Medical Services Upgrade non-functioning equipment used for training 25,000$                            
Dept - operating Finance Department DebtBook software for GASB 87/96 tracking - purchase Withdrawn
Dept - operating Finance Department DebtBook software for GASB 87/96 tracking - 50% annual fee for 2023 Withdrawn
Dept - operating Human Resources/ Risk Management Employee recruitment and retention 174,393$                       
Dept - operating Mayor Swadley Community wide survey Zero to $100,000
Dept - operating R-xxx-2021 (2021 expenditure) Baker Tilly US, LLP lost revenue calculations under interim final rules (9/28/2021 expenditure) 3,456$                   
Dept - operating Stoughton Opera House Lost revenue at performance venues 122,000$                       
Economic Development Alderperson Hirsch Downtown revolving loan fund $200,001 to $300,000
Economic Development City staff Provide funding for replicating Madison Development Corp's Venture Debt Fund $100,001 to $200,000
Economic Development Mayor Swadley Provide resources to Gary Becker to continue work on WEDC grants for small businesses and non-profits To be determined
Economic Development Mayor Swadley Land acquisition To be determined
Economic Development Mayor Swadley Funding for creation of Community Development Authority to combine RDA and Housing Authority To be determined
Economic Development Regional Development Authority Provide funding for services from Gary Becker related to East Main Street Redevelopment Plan 14,850$                            
Home owners Alderperson Heili Direct assistance to households for weatherization efforts To be determined
Information Technology Alderperson Tikalsky Recover losses resulting from the incursion into the city email server in April 2021 To be determined
Information Technology Alderperson Tikalsky Support cost of IT system architecture design and revisions services to meet current community needs To be determined


City of Stoughton
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funding Matrix


S:\Finance\ARPA\ARPA funding matrixes\ARPA funding matrix 2022
Matrix
8/10/2023, 2:47 PM







Meetings of:       COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 
Date//Time:       Tuesday, August 23, 2022, 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting. (Virtual 


and in person)  
Virtual: You can join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via 
Zoom: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88633849539?pwd=cHhTakJmMEVmeitwa0tabWow
VSt3Zz09 
Meeting ID: 886 3384 9539 
Passcode: 538451 
One tap mobile 
+13092053325,,88633849539#,,,,*538451# US
+13126266799,,88633849539#,,,,*538451# US (Chicago)


In-person: Council Chambers, (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 
        321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


The meeting can also be live-streamed on https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum  
Channel 981 or on TDS Channel 12. 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg 
Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Frank Raff, Lisa Reeves, Brett Schumacher, Joyce 
Tikalsky, and Rachel Venegas 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS ARE NEEDED FOR A 
QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable 
to attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone at (608) 873-6677 or via email at 
cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


CALL TO ORDER 


1. Roll Call


2. Minutes and Reports:
Landmarks (7/14/22); Plan Commission (7/11/22); Police & Fire Commission (3/28/22, 5/3/22);
Finance Committee (7/26/22); Tree Commission (7/13/22); Redevelopment Authority (7/13/22,
7/26/22); Personnel Committee (3/7/22); Police & Fire Commission (4/11/22, 5/24/22); Public
Works (7/21/22)


3. Public Comment Period:


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin, will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at 
the time and location given below. 


See page two of the agenda 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88633849539?pwd=cHhTakJmMEVmeitwa0tabWowVSt3Zz09

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88633849539?pwd=cHhTakJmMEVmeitwa0tabWowVSt3Zz09

https://wsto.tv/live

mailto:cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us

dehlinger

Highlight







• If you would like to speak during the public comment period, please fill out the form 
and submit it by 6:30 p.m. on August 23, 2022. http://speak.cityofstoughton.com.  
 


4. Communications and Presentations: 
• A.  American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) – fiscal recap 
• B.  ARPA – presentation calendar 
• C.  ARPA – funding request – Neighborhood Free Health Clinic 
• D.  ARPA – funding request – Stoughton Yoga 
• E.  ARPA – funding request – Human Resources / Risk Management Department 
• F.  Stoughton Utilities – Compensation study results and implementation 


 
5. Consent Agenda: 


A.  Council Minutes – August 9, 2022 
        B.  R-168-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator licenses to   
              various applicants.  


C.  Minutes of July 18, 2022, Regular Utilities Committee Meeting; Stoughton Utilities 
Payments Due List Report; Stoughton Utilities Financial Summary; Stoughton Utilities 
Statistical Report   


 
OLD BUSINESS  
 
6.  Discussion and possible action regarding American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) award process 


______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
7. O-17-2022 Planned Development - General Development Plan for Lot 6 within the 51 West 
Development.  (Plan Commission recommends approval 7-0 on 8/8/22)    
         First Reading 


8.  O-18-2022 Proposed ordinance amendments to Chapter 30 – Floodplain Zoning.  (Plan 
Commission recommends approval 7-0 on 8/8/22) 


First Reading 
 


9. R-169-2022 Certified Survey Map (CSM) to combine parcels at 1000 East Street.  (Plan 
Commission recommends approval 7-0 on 8/8/22) 


10. R-170-2022 Amend 2022 adopted budget for Arts Council Fund (Finance Committee 
recommended approval 6-0 on 08/09/2022) 


11. R-171-2022 Amend 2022 adopted budget for Fire Pension Fund and Fire Equipment Fund 
(Finance Committee recommended approval 6-0 on 08/09/2022) 


12. R-172-2022 Amend 2022 adopted budget for Safety Building Fund (Finance Committee 
recommended approval 6-0 on 08/09/2022) 



http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/

dehlinger

Highlight







Last updated 8/19/22 @ 8:03 a.m.


Date Description Vendor Reference Actual Authorized Total
Amounts Amounts


Revenues:
6/25/2021 First tranche payment State of Wisconsin Receipt 100054818 686,311.71$      
12/31/2022 Interest income (annual) WI Investment Series Cooperative Monthly revenue 15.99$                
6/21/2022 Second tranche payment State of Wisconsin 686,311.71$      
12/31/2022 Interest income (annual) WI Investment Series Cooperative Monthly revenue 321.20$              


Total revenues 1,372,960.61$    ‐$                 1,372,960.61$            


Expenditures:
9/28/2021 ARPA lost revenue calculations Baker Tilly US, LLP Invoice BT1907757 3,456.00$           
4/28/2022 Lead service replacement program Stoughton Utilities Invoice 013577 110,000.00$      


City digital welcome signs To be determined Uncertain
5/24/2022 Innovation Center grant matching funds R‐115‐2022 125,000.00$  


Total expenditures 113,456.00$       125,000.00$   238,456.00$                


Net amount available 1,134,504.61$            
Less requests to date 2,286,573.00$            
Available (excess) (1,152,068.39)$           


Fiscal Recap


City of Stoughton


Calendar Year 2022
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) of 2021 Recap



dehlinger

Highlight



dehlinger

Highlight







CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Provide clarification regarding ARPA funds for City digital welcome signs 
 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended approval ___ on 03/14/2023 
                                                            TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 


 
Fiscal Impact:   To be determined 
 
File Number: 


 
R-40-2023 Date 3/14/2023  


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton received American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds 
totaling $1,372,623.42 during calendar years 2021 and 2022; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has approved the following expenditures as per the 
chart below: 


Authority Payee Purpose Amount
Baker Tilly, LLP Lost revenue calculations 3,456$      


R-181-2022 Stoughton Utilities Lead service line project 110,000    
R-211-2022 Stoughton Innovation Center Start up funds 125,000    


To be determined New ambulace for EMS Pending
Total 238,456$ ; and,  


 WHEREAS, the remaining available ARPA funds is $1,134,167.42; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton considers that Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) that is 
prepared with the annual budget adoption to be an integral part of the adopted annual budget and 
tax levy; and, 


 WHEREAS, the 2022 adopted CIP included $65,000 for City digital welcome signs for 
the Public Works Department under project number 22016000 in Fund 400 Construction with 
funding to be provided by an unnamed grant assumed to be ARPA; and, 


 WHEREAS, the Public Works Department indicated in their 2022 ARPA fund 
presentations in July/August 2022 that they are requesting an additional $25,000 in ARPA funds 
for City digital welcome signs, bringing the total up to $90,000; and 


 WHEREAS, it is unclear as to whether or not the original $65,000 included in the adopted 
2022 CIP was supposed to be provided by ARPA funds or not; and; 







 WHEREAS, the Director of Public Works has indicated that Public Works has not 
purchased any digital welcome signs to date until the Common Council makes a decision on how 
ARPA proceeds are to be spent; and, 


 WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller has requested clarification as to whether 
the original $65,000 for City digital welcome signs should be considered as appropriated ARPA 
funds or not; and 


 WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller and the Director of Public Works both 
concur that the City of Stoughton Common Council consider the original $65,000 for City digital 
welcome signs not be considered as an ARPA funded item in the 2022 CIP; 


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Stoughton Common Council 
hereby directs the Director of Finance/Comptroller to consider the 2022 CIP budget for Project 
22016000 in Fund 400 Construction be considered as being funded by a grant other than ARPA 
funds.  


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







dehlinger

Highlight



dehlinger

Highlight











Motion by Hirsch, second by Schumacher to approve the consent agenda.  Motion carried 12-0. 
 
 OLD BUSINESS  
None 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
O-4-2023 Amending Chapter 70-322 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; Establish a 35 mph 
speed restriction on Rutland Dunn Town Line Road (both directions) for a distance of 1,900 feet 
from the western edge of the USH 51 right-of-way.  
 
Alder Jenson read O-4-2023 Amending Chapter 70-322 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; 
Establish a 35 mph speed restriction on Rutland Dunn Town Line Road (both directions) for a distance 
of 1,900 feet from the western edge of the USH 51 right-of-way as a First Reading.  It will be back 
before Council on March 28. 
 
R-38-2023 Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton approving the name of the 
shelter in Egglesons’ Woods Park as the Lions Club Shelter. 
 
Motion by Hirsch, second by Jenson to approve R-38-2023 Resolution by the Common Council of the 
City of Stoughton approving the name of the shelter in Egglesons’ Woods Park as the Lions Club 
Shelter. Motion carried 12-0. 
 
R-39-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for ARPA funds to purchase an ambulance for EMS. 
 
Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-39-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for 
ARPA funds to purchase an ambulance for EMS. Motion carried 12-0. 
 
R-40-2023 Provide clarification regarding ARPA funds for City digital welcome signs. 
 
Schumacher stated this was not approved by Finance but recommended that it be moved to the 
Committee of the Whole meeting on April 6. 
 
R-41-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper city officials to approve the Fire Department Assistant 
Fire Chief position description.  
 
Motion by Reeves, second by Jenson to approve R-41-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper city 
officials to approve the Fire Department Assistant Fire Chief position description. Motion carried 12-0. 
 
R-42-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper city officials to approve the Fire Department Fire Captain 
position description.  
 
Motion by Reeves, second by Schumacher to approve R-42-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper city 
officials to approve the Fire Department Fire Captain position description. Motion carried 12-0. 



dehlinger

Highlight



dehlinger

Highlight



dehlinger

Highlight















dehlinger

Highlight



dehlinger

Highlight



dehlinger

Highlight





		Corrected page 1.pdf

		07 R-40-2023 Request for clarification regarding ARPA funds for digital welcome signs.pdf

		01 Ad Hoc CIP Committee documentation 2022.pdf

		2022-2026 CIP Version 15.pdf

		Rev exp.pdf

		Fund 400.pdf



		02 ARPA funding matrix 2022.pdf

		03 Common Council documentation 2022.pdf

		0 Council Agenda August 23, 2022.pdf

		04a - ARPA fiscal recap 08-19-2022.pdf



		04 R-40-2023 clarification resolution.pdf

		10 R-40-2023 ARPA Funds - Clarification regarding digital signs.pdf

		Finance Committee minutes (signed) 03-14-2023.pdf

		Council Minutes  - March 14, 2023.pdf



		Committee of the Whole minutes (signed) 04-06-2023.pdf

		05 Committee of the Whole minutes (signed) 04-06-2023.pdf












PDS,	A	Converge	Company	
N57	W39605	Hwy	16
Dock	4
Oconomowoc,	Wisconsin	53066
United	States
(P)	262-569-5300	
	


	


Date
Jun	29,	2023	12:48	PM	CDT


Expiration	Date
07/29/2023


Modified	Date
Jun	29,	2023	12:50	PM	CDT


Quote		(Open)


Quote	#	
2259960		-	rev	1	of	1


Description
2023	Client	Badgerbooks


SalesRep
Berner,		Dana	
(P)	262-569-5366	


Customer	Contact
Montgomery,		John	
(P)	6082065648	
JMontgomery@cityofstoughton.com	


	


Customer	
City	of	Stoughton	(003335)	
Montgomery,	John
City	of	Stoughton
207	S.	Forrest	St	
Stoughton,	WI	53589
United	States
(P)	6088736619	
	


Bill	To	
City	of	Stoughton
Payable,	Accounts
City	of	Stoughton
207	S.	Forrest	St	
Stoughton,	WI	53589
United	States
(P)	6088736619	
	


Ship	To	
City	of	Stoughton
Montgomery,	John
321	S.	Fourth	Street
Public	Safety	Bldg
Stoughton,	WI	53589
United	States
(P)	6088736619	
3758955
	


Payment	Method	
Terms:	Credit	Card	
	


Customer	PO: Terms:
Credit	Card


Ship	Via:
FedEx	Ground


Special	Instructions: Carrier	Account	#:


	


#	 Description Part	# Qty Unit	Price Total


1
	
Engage	One	14	Touch	All-in-One	141	w/	Stand	Alone 	 513S2US#ABA	 4	 $1,839.00	 $7,356.00	


2
	


Badgerbook	Client	Configuration	 	 	 	 	


	 PDS	Configuration	Services	 000522	 4	 $79.00	 $316.00	


	 2022	-	Device	Provisioning	(Camera,	Switch	Provisi	
808475	


808475	 1	 $0.00	 $0.00	


	 Imaging	Services	 09137	 1	 $0.00	 $0.00	


	 Labeling	Services	 09140	 1	 $0.00	 $0.00	


	 *Save	Boxes*	For	Shipping	 499888	 4	 $0.00	 $0.00	


	 Component	Repackaging	 319621	 4	 $0.00	 $0.00	


	 Bundle	Subtotal	 	 1	 $316.00	 $316.00	


3
	
WEC	PollBook	Asset	Tag	 457736	 20	 $0.00	 $0.00	


4
	
WEC	IMCT	BadgerBookAiO	2022	 WEC	H400


2022	
4	 $0.00	 $0.00	


5
	
ENGAGE	PUSB	THERMAL	PRINTER	 299V0AA	 4	 $0.00	 $0.00	


6
	
6FT	PUSB	CBL	BLK	CABL	 5C2B8AA	 4	 $0.00	 $0.00	


7
	
USB	Desktop	320MK	Mouse	and	Keyboard	
Keyboard	and	mouse	set	-	USB	-	US	-	Smart	Buy	-	for	ZBook	15u	G4,	15u	G5,	15u	G6,	15v	G5,	17	G4,	17	G5,	17	G6,
Create	G7;	ZBook	Firefly	14	G9	


9SR36UT#ABA	 4	 $19.00	 $76.00	


8
	
4yr	9x5	NBD	Onsite	Support	Upgrade,	Retail	Pkg	
Extended	service	agreement	-	parts	and	labor	-	4	years	-	on-site	-	9x5	-	response	time:	NBD	-	for	Engage	Clean	Mount,	Flex
Mini	Retail	System,	Go	10,	Go	Mobile	System,	Stability	Mount	


UL589E	 4	 $119.00	 $476.00	


	
	


Subtotal: $8,224.00
Tax	(.0000%): $0.00


Shipping: $0.00
Total: $8,224.00


	


Terms	and	Conditions



https://usm.channelonline.com/pds/email/Products/overview/M023482345

https://usm.channelonline.com/pds/email/Products/overview/C000004350D000003594

https://usm.channelonline.com/pds/email/Products/overview/C000000021D000003594

https://usm.channelonline.com/pds/email/Products/overview/C000000025D000003594

https://usm.channelonline.com/pds/email/Products/overview/M023367658

https://usm.channelonline.com/pds/email/Products/overview/M023367659

https://usm.channelonline.com/pds/email/Products/overview/M021918184

https://usm.channelonline.com/pds/email/Products/overview/M004645899





Unless	a	specific	Master	Services	&	Product	Sales	Agreement	is	in	effect	between	the	parties,	this	quote	is	subject	to	PDS	Terms	&	Conditions	which	can	be	viewed	at
http://www.shoppds.com/termsofsale.aspx


Shipping	and	tax	amounts	are	estimated.


Purchases	made	by	credit	card	may	be	subject	to	a	3.5%	Convenience	Fee	at	the	time	of	invoicing.


PDS	has	been	notified	by	numerous	technology	manufacturers	that	pricing	is	subject	to	rapid	change	due	to	global	component	shortages	and	related	price	increases.	This
situation	is	not	unique	to	PDS.


Please	contact	your	sales	team	with	additional	questions.


	



http://www.shoppds.com/termsofsale.aspx










 


BS&A Software  
14965 Abbey Lane Bath MI 48808  
(855) BSA-SOFT / fax (517) 641-8960 
bsasoftware.com 


 


Budgetary Estimate for: 


City of Stoughton, Dane County WI 


August 14, 2023 


Quoted by: Dan J. Burns, CPA 


 


 


Software and Services for BS&A Cloud Upgrade 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


  


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Thank you for the opportunity to quote our software and services. 
 


 At BS&A, we are focused on delivering unparalleled service, solutions, support, and customer satisfaction. You’ll 


see this in our literature, but it’s not just a marketing strategy... it’s a mindset deeply embedded in our DNA. Our 


goal is to provide such remarkable customer service that our customers feel compelled to remark about it. 


 


We are extremely proud of the many long-term customer relationships we have built. Our success is directly 


correlated with putting the customer first and consistently choosing to listen. Delivering unparalleled customer 


service is the foundation of our company. 
 


 


  







 


 City of Stoughton, Dane County WI | August 14, 2023 
  


  Dan J. Burns, CPA, Account Executive | (855) 272-7638 | dburns@bsasoftware.com 


      Page 2 of 6  Prices good for a period of 90 days from date on proposal 


Cost Summary  


Software is licensed for use only by municipality identified on the cover page.  If used for additional entities or agencies, 


please contact BS&A for appropriate pricing. Prices listed are estimates based on information currently available. 


 


Upgrade - Cloud Modules 


 


Financial Management   


$3,150 General Ledger  


Accounts Payable  $2,675 


Cash Receipting  $2,675 


Accounts Receivable  $2,675 


Work Order $2,675 


Personnel Management   


$4,330 Payroll  


Human Resources  $3,150 


Timesheets   $1,935 


Property   


$2,675 Special Assessment 


Subtotal $25,940 


 


 


New Purchase - Cloud Modules 


 


Financial Management   


$2,675 Fixed Assets 


 


 


Data Conversions/Database Setup 


  


Convert existing Excel data to BS&A format:  


$2,970  Fixed Assets (Asset Information) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 



mailto:dburns@bsasoftware.com





 


 City of Stoughton, Dane County WI | August 14, 2023 
  


  Dan J. Burns, CPA, Account Executive | (855) 272-7638 | dburns@bsasoftware.com 


      Page 3 of 6  Prices good for a period of 90 days from date on proposal 


Project Management and Implementation Planning 


 


Services include: 


 Analyzing customer processes to ensure all critical components are addressed. 


 Creating and managing the project schedule in accordance with the customer's existing processes and needs. 


 Planning and scheduling training around any planned process changes included in the project plan. 


 Modifying the project schedule as needed to accommodate any changes to the scope and requirements of the project that are 


discovered. 


 Providing a central contact between the customer’s project leaders, developers, trainers, IT staff, conversion staff, and other 


resources required throughout the transition period. 


 Installing the software and providing IT consultation for network, server, and workstation configuration and requirements. 


 Reviewing and addressing the specifications for needed customizations to meet customer needs (when applicable). 


 


 $15,125 


 


 


 


 


Implementation and Training 


 


 $1,100/day 


 Days quoted are estimates; you are billed for actual days used 


 


Services include: 


 


 Setting up users and user security rights for each application 


 Performing final process and procedure review 


 Configuring custom settings in each application to fit the needs of the customer 


 Setting up application integration and workflow methods 


 Onsite verification of converted data for balancing and auditing purposes 


 Training and Go-Live 


  


Software Setup Days: 11  $12,100 


Financial Management Modules Days: 8  $8,800 


Personnel Management Modules Days: 19  $20,900 


Property Modules  Days: 1  $1,100 


 Total: 39 Subtotal $42,900 


 


 


 


  



mailto:dburns@bsasoftware.com





 


 City of Stoughton, Dane County WI | August 14, 2023 
  


  Dan J. Burns, CPA, Account Executive | (855) 272-7638 | dburns@bsasoftware.com 


      Page 4 of 6  Prices good for a period of 90 days from date on proposal 


Cost Totals 
Not including Annual Service Fees 


 


Modules - Upgrade  $25,940 


Modules – New  $2,675 


Data Conversion  $2,970 


Project Management and Implementation Planning  $15,125 


Implementation and Training  $42,900 


Total Proposed  $90,985 


Travel Expenses  $24,375 


Hosting Fees  $4,100 


 


  


 


Some of these budgetary estimate components are still in development and/or testing. Firm pricing will not be established 


until after January 1, 2024. 


 


 
 


Payment Schedule 
 


1st Payment:  $18,095 to be invoiced upon execution of this agreement. 


2nd Payment:  $32,715 to be invoiced at activation of customer’s site. 


3rd Payment: $67,275 to be invoiced upon completion of training. 


  



mailto:dburns@bsasoftware.com





 


 City of Stoughton, Dane County WI | August 14, 2023 
  


  Dan J. Burns, CPA, Account Executive | (855) 272-7638 | dburns@bsasoftware.com 


      Page 5 of 6  Prices good for a period of 90 days from date on proposal 


Cloud Annual Service Fees  
 


Unlimited support is included in your Annual Service Fee. Service Fees are billed annually. After two (2) years, BS&A Software reserves the 


right to increase the Annual Service Fee by no more than the yearly Consumers Price Index for All Urban Consumers U.S. city average  


(CPI-U).” 


 


Financial Management  
$3,150 General Ledger  


Accounts Payable  $2,675 


Cash Receipting  $2,675 


Accounts Receivable  $2,675 


Fixed Assets $2,675 


Work Order  $2,675 


Personnel Management  
$4,330 Payroll  


Human Resources  $3,150 


Timesheets  $1,935 


Property  


$2,675 Special Assessment 


Total Annual Service Fees $28,615 


 


 


 


Hosting Fees 


Fees relating to the hosting and storage of data through Microsoft Azure are to be billed annually, for all modules included above. 


 $4,100 


 


 


 


  



mailto:dburns@bsasoftware.com





 


 City of Stoughton, Dane County WI | August 14, 2023 
  


  Dan J. Burns, CPA, Account Executive | (855) 272-7638 | dburns@bsasoftware.com 


      Page 6 of 6  Prices good for a period of 90 days from date on proposal 


Additional Information 


Program Customization 


BS&A strives to provide a flexible solution that can be tailored to each municipality's needs. However, in some cases, custom work may 


be required. Typical examples include:  


• custom payment import/lock box import 


• custom OCR scan-line 


• custom journal export to an outside accounting system 


• custom reports 


If you require any custom work, please let us know so that we can better understand the scope of your request and include that in a 


separate proposal. 


 


 


Cash Receipting Hardware  
   Quantity  Cost 


 


Epson THM-6000V Series Receipt Printer* $925 x _____ = $_____________ 


 


APG Series 100Cash Drawer** $250 x _____ = $_____________  


 


Honeywell Hyperion 1300g Linear-Imaging Scanner $250 x _____ = $_____________ 


 


Credit Card Reader (if using Invoice Cloud) $75 x _____ = $_____________ 


 


This will add $____________________ to the Total Proposed. 


 


*IMPORTANT. The receipt printer must be plugged into the USB port on one workstation (not your server). This printer is not to be shared 


with other workstations. If more than one workstation will be used for receipting, please consider purchasing more than one receipt printer.  


 


Please provide the number of cash drawers that will be hooked up to the printer_____________ 


Note:  The availability, model numbers, and pricing for all third party hardware listed above is subject to availability from the 


manufacturers. In the event that the listed hardware is no longer available at the time of purchase, a comparable replacement will be 


available, at the then current cost. Returns require pre-approval, and all purchased equipment must be shipped back to BS&A in its 


original packaging. Returns are subject to a re-stocking fee of $50.00. 


BS&A Online 


Connection Requirements 


BS&A Cloud modules require a high-speed internet connection (cable modem or DSL). 


 



mailto:dburns@bsasoftware.com



		20230816083838986.pdf

		Stoughton City Dane WI - CLOUD Upgrade Budgetary Est FM.HRMS.SPAS  8.14.23_DB.pdf






2024 POLICE DEPARTMENT CAPITOL IMPROVEMENT           
PLAN (CIP)


• Purchase new body and squad cameras.


• Purchase a policy program.


• Replace our K-9 squad


• Replace squad #270


• Explore a new Public Safety Facility







SQUAD AND BODY CAMERA 
UPDATE REQUEST







HISTORY


• Stoughton was the 1st police department in Dane County to get body cameras 
in 2013. 


• We were a leader in this area of documenting and evidence collection.


• Squad cameras were upgraded to our current system in 2014.


• Unfortunately, in 2023 we are still using some of the same cameras and 
systems we purchased a decade ago.







CURRENTLY OUR OFFICERS USE 2 DIFFERENT VIDEO 
CAMERA SYSTEMS
PANASONIC SQUAD CAMERAS 
VIE VIEW BODY CAMERAS







THE BIG WHY
-BOTH SYSTEMS ARE VERY OUTDATED AND NO LONGER SUPPORTED


-TWICE AS MUCH WORK FOR OFFICERS AND RECORDS RELEASE STAFF WITH EVERY 
INCIDENT HAVING TO BE TAGGED AND RETRIEVED IN 2 SYSTEMS. 


-NEITHER PROGRAM HAS REDACTION SOFTWARE WHICH IS A LIABILITY RISK 


-NEED TO UPDATE TO CLOUD STORAGE WHICH ISN’T AVAILABLE WITH OUR CURRENT 
SYSTEM. 


-OUR EQUIPMENT IS BREAKING/AGING OUT AND CAN’T BE REPLACED PIECE BY PIECE







THE SQUAD CAM WHY
-SYSTEM IS OUTDATED AND DOESN’T FUNCTION PROPERLY


-OFFICERS GET KICKED OUT OF THE PROGRAM NUMEROUS TIMES PER SHIFT. 


-THE OPERATING SOFTWARE FOR THE SYSTEM IS A SECURITY RISK AS IT DOESN’T 
WORK PROPERLY WITH CURRENT COMPUTERS.


-PANASONIC NO LONGER SERVICES OR SUPPORTS OUR CAMERAS.


-AUDIO IS NOT UTILIZED AS IT IS A SEPARATE MIC THAN THE BODY CAMERA


-THE CAMERAS ARE OUTDATED AND THE QUALITY IS POOR.







THE BODY CAM WHY
-VIE VIEW DOESN’T EXIST ANYMORE, SO NO SUPPORT OR ABILITY TO PURCHASE


-CAMERAS ARE OUTDATED WITH MANY 2013 MODELS STILL BEING USED


-BATTERY LIFE IS HORRIBLE 


-RUNNING OUT OF SPARE CAMERAS


-NEWER TECHNOLOGY HAS MANY ADVANTAGES


-BETTER QUALITY


-HISTORICAL RECORDING


-12 HOUR BATTERY LIFE


-REFRESH PROGRAM REPLACES ALL EQUIPMENT ONCE IN 5 YEARS


-IN FIELD TAGGING OF VIDEOS


-WARRANTY


-CUSTOMER SUPPORT


COMMUNICATE WITH THE SQUAD CAM, ALL VIDEO PACKAGED AS 1 CASE, AND CAN ADD OUTSIDE VIDEO


IF 1 CAMERA IS ON BOTH ARE ON. 







THE REQUEST
TO UPGRADE OUR SQUAD AND BODY CAMS TO GETAC VIDEO SOLUTIONS 
SYSTEM. (THE CHEAPEST OF 3 QUOTES WE RECEIVED)


$95,000 FOR CAMERAS, SOFTWARE, LICENSING AND CLOUD STORAGE OF ALL 
VIDEOS


$6000, FOR REMOVAL OF OLD SYSTEM AND INSTALL OF NEW, $600 PER CAR


A RECURRING COST OF $15,500 PER YEAR FOR ONGOING CLOUD STORAGE


PER CITY IT DEPT, WE NEED ABOUT $50,000 EVERY 5 YEARS FOR OUR CURRENT 
ONSITE STORAGE AT CURRENT RETENTION RATES







REPLACE CURRENT K-9 SQUAD #283


Our current K-9 squad is a 2017 Ford Explorer.  
Although the mileage is somewhat low, the hours on 
the vehicle exceed 10,000.  Recent repairs included 
repairing cooling components and the exhaust.  
There are the typical small dents and paint chipping 
and the powder coating from the dog kennel is 
corroding.  The squad itself would remain in our 
fleet as a civilian service officer vehicle. Public 
Works recommend replacement as a K9 unit.







The new K-9 squad should be a standard gasoline powered model. 
Non-Hybrid units allow for a steady flow of warm or cold air easily 
controlled by the handler. Where the hybrid units tend to have a
less steady stream of cold or warm air to the interior of the 
vehicle. The new squad should be equipped with rear air 
conditioning and able to have a full dog kennel fitted.  The full dog 
kennel is of course large and less stressful for the dog.  Other 
preferable upgrades in tinted front and rear windows for 
temperature control, heat alarm and rifle and shot gun mounts 
(current squad only has room for rifle).  







K-9 SQUAD REPLACEMENT 


• Replacement Safer for dog (Odin)


• The current K9 squad 283 is 6 years old and repairs and breakdowns are starting to become more frequent. This current squad
has had 2 unsafe conditions when Odin was within the car.


• -the a/c system froze up and was blowing warm air in the passenger/dog compartment causing the heat alarm to activate.


• -The squad overheated while idling in the parking lot and coolant leaked out of the system onto the ground when Odin was in
the squad. This was caught before the heat alarm was activated.


• With the squad being 6 years old so is all the K9 related safety equipment. The heat alarm is 6 years old and now newer more 
technology heat alarms are available. The current heat alarm and monitoring pager have to be within close distance to the squad 
for the handler to monitor the temperature and receive the heat alarm alert. New heat alarms have options for text messaging to 
alert K9 handler of a problem anywhere with cell phone service. The kennel is also 6 years old and starting to show its age as the
powder coating is starting to chip off allowing the aluminum to corrode in the dog transport area. The caulking is also discolored 
and showing age.


• New squad cars have more technology within to help safely transport police K9’s. New vehicles are now equipped with rear a/c 
which can be attached to the kennel allowing cool air to flow directly into dog transport area. These new squads are also equipped
with “auto” mode on thermostat allowing the K9 handler to set a desired interior temperature for the K9’s safety.







REPLACE SQUAD #270







SQUAD #270
Model Year:  2019


Current Miles:  62,935


Hours:  9041


Fleet Score:  “Good”


Best candidate to trade to 
continue two per year fleet 
purchases.







REPLACE UNMARKED SQUAD #270


• In 2022 and 2023 we experienced 
difficulty purchasing vehicles.  One 
order for two squads was canceled 
by the manufacturer (Ford).  


• We would order the replacement 
squad and hope for delivery late in 
2024.


• Hybrid models are even more 
difficult to find/take delivery of. We 
hope that getting our orders in early 
will keep our fleet supplemented 
with these two replacements in 
2024. 







SQUAD REPLACEMENT OPTIONS


• We are somewhat at the mercy of 
the manufacturers


• Ideally we would purchase an Ford 
F150 truck for the K9 squad. 


• For 270, we would order a SUV 
style squad (Ford or Dodge)


• Both would need new interior 
equipment.  This year the 
changeovers cost about $12k each.







REQUEST:  UPDATE OUR POLICY PROGRAM 
• LIABILITY, LIABILITY, LIABILITY


• Case law and Supreme Court decisions are forever changing. It’s imperative that officers and the 
agency be operating under policy that aligns with the most current rulings of State and Federal 
Courts


• Our current policy manual needs updating


• Lexipol uses their full time legal and context development team to create and maintain all policies


• Daily training for officers on agency specific policies


• Policy updates specific to WI


• Provides an archive to reference for past policies and to compare changes


• Web based Delivery Platform and App


• Reports including documenting employee use and training time


• Lexipol is supported by CIVMIC







CURRENT POLICY ONLINE


VERY BASIC PROGRAM
REQUIRES MANUALLY 
UPDATES SLOW AND DATED


Policies are not readily accessible in the 
field















EXPLORE A NEW PUBLIC SAFETY FACILITY







REPLACE OUR CURRENT BUILDING 


• Our current facility was built in the mid 1980s and we have outgrown it.


• Our current arrangements include all three floors which hampers our everyday 
workflow.


• Remodel efforts in 1999 (EMS moved), 2012 (added second floor admin 
offices) and 2016 (Dispatch Center) extended the building’s usefulness.







SUPPORT A SPACE PLANNING STUDY


• Combined Police, Fire and EMS facility 







EXTERIOR VIEWS


NORTH PARKING LOT
Small parking area.  Weather provides 
many challenges with limited garage 
space.


MAIN GARAGE
Two spaces with one dedicated for 
transporting in custodies.


EAST GARAGE
Two spaces that were part of the original 
PD portion of the building.  Very small 
spaces.  Not all vehicles fit.







FIRST FLOOR


OFFICER CUBICLES 
Officer cubicles are completely full


SQUAD/TRAINING ROOM 
Okay for shift briefings


Inadequate for interactive training


DISPATCH CENTER 
The last are to be remodled







BASEMENT


EVIDENCE ROOM PROPERTY ROOM PROPERTY ROOM







SECOND FLOOR


EOC
Support column creates challenges with 
larger groups


CONFERENCE ROOM
Small and doubles as a break room


EOC
Another view







WORKING WITH THREE FLOORS!


Our work flow is physically 
impeded as steps are everywhere.







• Plan, design and construct a standalone public safety facility for fire, ems and 
police


• Support Director Scheel’s proposal to hire a consultant


• Invest in our future





